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	TRANSPORT STRATEGY
PUBLIC REALM & PLANNING  


	To:
	Robert Lester (Planning Officer)

	From:
	Hannah Fallows (Transport Planner) 

	Date:
	Wednesday 24 August 2016

	Re:
	93 - 103 Drummond Street

London

NW1 2HJ

	Proposal:
	Change of use from existing mixed use building (including B1a office, B1c workshop, B8 storage and A1 retail) to Offices (use class B1a)

	Reference:
	2016/3599/P


The Transport Strategy team have reviewed the plans and documents submitted with the pre-application 2016/3599/P. At present the proposal is deemed as unacceptable in terms of transport for the following reasons:

· Cycle parking; and
· Car parking.

A small alteration to the layout of the cycle and car parking is required. The proposal should be revised to include this change and be resubmitted to Transport Strategy for review.

Proposal

The proposal seeks to change the use of the existing site to a new office creating 1774 sqm of B1 floor area.
Cycle Parking
Development Policy DP18 (Paragraphs 18.12 and 18.13) requires a development to provide cycle parking facilities in accordance with the minimum requirements of our cycle parking standards (Refer to Appendix 2 of Camden Development Policies document).  We also expect the development to provide cycle parking facilities in accordance with the minimum requirements of the London Plan. 
Table 6.3 in the London Plan lists the minimum number of cycle parking spaces required for Offices (B1):

· Long-stay: 1 space per 90 sqm

· Short stay: first 5,000 sqm - 1 space per 500 sqm and thereafter 1 space per 5,000 sqm;

In order to comply with policy the applicant must therefore include the following number of cycle parking spaces:

· 20 long-stay spaces; and 
· 4 short-stay spaces.

The proposal seeks to install 19 ‘Sheffield’ stands (38 spaces) at basement level which intend to be fully enclosed and accessible via a ramp (i.e. step-free) and 2 ‘Sheffield’ stands (3 spaces) located externally, in front of the site in the private forecourt. Whilst this type of facility is acceptable and in line with the London Plan, the layouts of both the long and short-stay parking do not comply with that in Camden’s CPG7 and should be revised. It is welcomed that the applicant is exceeding long-stay parking requirements however the number of short-stay parking spaces must be increased from 3 to 4 in order to be fully policy compliant.
‘Sheffield’ cycle parking requires a clearance of 1000mm between adjacent stands (measured from the centre lines of the tubes) and at least 750mm for any stand that is next to a physical obstruction such as a wall or vehicular path. Each stand requires 1800mm of dedicated space for the length of the stand in addition to 1800mm horizontal clearance in front of stands. The applicant should refer to figures 3, 4 and 5 in section 9 of CPG7 for guidance. CPG7 is available on the Camden at the hyperlink below:

http://camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents/camden-planning-guidance.en
The applicant is required to install cycle parking facilities that provide space for a minimum of 20 cycles (long-stay) and 4 cycles (short-stay). Revised drawings showing the small amendments discussed above should be submitted to Transport Strategy for review. 
Car Parking
Policy DP18 requires that The Council’s Parking Standards apply to all development, whether involving new construction or a change in the use of an existing building. 

Development policy DP18 states that the Council seeks to ensure that developments provide the minimum necessary car parking provision.  The Council expects development to be car free in the Central London Area, the town centres of Camden Town, Finchley Road/Swiss Cottage, Kentish Town, Kilburn High Road and West Hampstead, and other areas within Controlled Parking Zones that are easily accessible by public transport. 
The site is located in the Somers Town controlled parking zone (CA-G) which operates between 0830 and 1830 hours on Monday to Friday. Our records indicate that the CPZ suffers from parking stress with a ratio of parking permits to parking spaces of 1.04 (i.e. 104 parking permits issued per 100 parking spaces). In addition, the site has a PTAL rating of 6b (excellent) which means it is highly accessible by public transport.

Whilst it is recognised that the proposals do not seek to introduce additional on-site car parking they seek to retain 6 existing spaces at the site. Although pre-existing, the 6 spaces propose to provide space for the new use at the site and thus are seen to be an introduction of 6 new spaces for office B1 use.
‘Appendix 2 - Parking Standards’ of DP18 states that if it can be demonstrated that travel to a workplace by public transport is severely limited then 1 space per 1500sqm may be introduced for business use.

At an absolute maximum a site with floor area of 1774 sqm would therefore only be able to retain 2 spaces. The 6 car parking spaces proposed is far greater than the allowable limit of 2. The Council would resist the introduction of car parking spaces for employment use in a PTAL 6b as it is contrary to DP18.
Paragraph 18.2 of DP18 states “Policy DP18 extends the car-free concept to non-residential development, which has the potential to reduce commuting by car and promote car-free work-related journeys. Car-free development can facilitate sustainability and wider objectives, including:

· freeing space on a site from car-parking, to allow additional housing, community facilities, play areas, amenity spaces and cycle parking.”

As per paragraph 18.2 the applicant should revise plans to show a reduction in car parking spaces that will provide room for the following:

· Space for 2 car parking bays;

· Electric car parking provision (as proposed in this application);

· Adequate space for a new designated short-stay cycle parking area.

In addition, if planning permission were to be granted it must be subject to a s106 planning obligation requiring the development to be car capped. The developer will have an obligation to then tell any future occupiers of the property that it is car capped and that occupiers will be unable to apply for business use car parking permits. 
“For car free and car capped developments, the Council will:

a) limit on-site car parking to:

· spaces designated for disabled people,

· any operational or servicing needs, and

· spaces designated for the occupiers of development specified as car capped;

b) not issue on-street parking permits; and

c) use a legal agreement to ensure that future occupants are aware they are not entitled to onstreet parking permits.”
Highway Works Contribution
It is not anticipated that a financial contribution is required for repairing any potential damage to public highway.
Summary 
At present the proposal is unacceptable. The applicant must revise plans to show the updated layout of the cycle storage areas and demonstrate an effort to reduce the number of on-site car parking spaces. 

If the alterations made are deemed as acceptable by Transport Strategy planning permission may be recommended subjected to a section 106 agreement that includes the following:

· A condition requiring the provision of a minimum of 20 long-stay and 4 short-stay cycle parking spaces. The cycle parking facilities should be designed to Camden Council’s design specifications as detailed in CPG7 and the ongoing retention of this facility, details of which will need to be submitted and approved, and approval should be reserved by condition.

· A Section 106 planning obligation to secure a car-capped development (2 on-site spaces). It should be noted that occupiers will not be eligible to apply for on-street parking permits from the Council.
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